
 

OFFICIAL 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Delegated Decisions 
 

Delegated Executive/Officer Decisions    

  

 Delegated Executive and Officer decisions are usually published every Wednesday and 

are available at the following link - https://tinyurl.com/ms6umor 

  

Cabinet decisions subject to call-in are published at the following link -http://tinyurl.com/yddrqll6 

 

 on the Council's Intranet Site at https://modgov/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx 

 on the Council’s website at https://tinyurl.com/jhnax4e 

 

The urgent delegated decision below may be implemented immediately.  

 

 

Oversight and Governance 

Chief Executive’s Department 

Plymouth City Council 

Ballard House 

Plymouth  PL1 3BJ 

T 01752 305155  

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy 

Published 15/09/20 

https://tinyurl.com/ms6umor
http://tinyurl.com/yddrqll6
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/


 

OFFICIAL 

 

Delegated Decisions 
 
 

1. Cabinet Member for Housing and Co-operative 

Development:   

 

 

 1.a  Urgent Decision - Local Authority Emergency Assistance Grant 

for Food and Essential Supplies 

(Pages 1 - 8) 

   

 



 

 

OFFICIAL 

EXECUTIVE DECISION 

  made by a Cabinet Member

 

 

REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED AUTHORITY BY 

AN INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBER 

Executive Decision Reference Number – HCD01 20/21 

 

Decision 

1 
Title of decision:  

 Local Authority Emergency Assistance Grant for Food and Essential Supplies 

2 Decision maker (Cabinet member name and portfolio title):  Chris Penberthy, Cabinet 

Member for Housing and Co-operative Development 

3 Report author and contact details: Rachel Silcock, Rachel.silcock@plymouth.gov.uk  

4 Decision to be taken: 

Approve the Local Authority Emergency Assistance Grant for Food and Essential 

Supplies Plymouth Scheme as set out in the attached report 

5 Reasons for decision: 

The government has made available £343,179.73 to Plymouth City Council for providing 

emergency food and essential supplies to people who need it as a result of the COVID-19 

Pandemic.  This scheme is Plymouth City Council’s approach to delivering the fund.   

6 Alternative options considered and rejected: 

To not implement the fund.  This would mean that Plymouth people who are in a difficult 

financial situation as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic would miss out on food and 

emergency supplies 

7 Financial implications: 

The funding is wholly provided by the government, there are no financial implications 

8 Is the decision a Key Decision? 

(please contact Democratic 

Support for further advice) 

 

Yes                          No Per the Constitution, a key 

decision is one which: 

 x in the case of capital projects and 

contract awards, results in a new 

commitment to spend and/or save in 

excess of £3million in total  

 x 
in the case of revenue projects when 

the decision involves entering into new 

commitments and/or making new 

savings in excess of £1million  

 x 
is significant in terms of its effect on 

communities living or working in an 

area comprising two or more wards 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1a

mailto:Rachel.silcock@plymouth.gov.uk
mailto:democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk
mailto:democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk


 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

in the area of the local authority.  

If yes, date of publication of the 

notice in the Forward Plan of Key 

Decisions 

 

9 Please specify how this decision is 

linked to the Council’s corporate 

plan/Plymouth Plan and/or the 

policy framework and/or the 

revenue/capital budget: 

The grant will be used to support the provision of food 

to some of Plymouth’s vulnerable people and 

communities in deprived areas which have been 

disproportionately affected by COVID-19 as part of a 

Fairer Plymouth. It also promotes the Co-operative 

agenda by bringing food poverty organisations together 

to work collectively to source and distribute food in a 

sustainable way 

10 Please specify any direct 

environmental implications of the 

decision (carbon impact) 

None directly arising from the recommendation from 

this report 

Urgent decisions 

11 Is the decision urgent and to be 

implemented immediately in 

the interests of the Council or 

the public?  

Yes x (If yes, please contact Democratic 

Support 

(democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk) 

for advice) 

No  (If no, go to section 13a) 

12a Reason for urgency: This has been a complex programme to set up in a short space of time, 

requiring new and diversified relationships with a lot of organisations.  In order to mobilise 

delivery before the predicted escalation of the emergency in October, this decision cannot be 

delayed.    

 

12b Scrutiny 

Chair 

Signature: 

Councillor Mrs Aspinall (agreed via 

email) 
Date 14 September 2020 

 

Scrutiny 

Committee 

name: 

Scrutiny Management Board 

Print 

Name: 

Councillor Mary Aspinall 

Consultation 

13a Are any other Cabinet members’ 

portfolios affected by the 

decision? 

Yes   

No X (If no go to section 14) 

13b Which other Cabinet member’s 

portfolio is affected by the 

decision? 

 

Page 2

http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FmgListPlans.aspx%3FRPId%3D254%26amp%3BRD%3D0
http://web.plymouth.gov.uk/modgov?modgovlink=http%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.plymouth.gov.uk%2FmgListPlans.aspx%3FRPId%3D254%26amp%3BRD%3D0
mailto:democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk


 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

13c Date Cabinet member consulted  

 

14 Has any Cabinet member 

declared a conflict of interest in 

relation to the decision? 

Yes  If yes, please discuss with the 

Monitoring Officer  

No x 

15 Which Corporate Management 

Team member has been 

consulted? 

Name  Ruth Harrell 

Job title Director of Public Health  

Date 

consulted 

17/08/2020 

Sign-off  

16 Sign off codes from the relevant 

departments consulted: 

Democratic Support 

(mandatory) 

DS31 20/21 

Finance (mandatory) pl.20.21.75 

Legal (mandatory) MS/02.09.20 

Human Resources (if 

applicable) 

 

Corporate property (if 

applicable) 

 

Procurement (if applicable)  

 Appendices 

17 Ref. Title of appendix 

A Briefing Report 

  

  

  

Confidential/exempt information 

18a Do you need to include any 

confidential/exempt information?   

 

 

Yes 

 

 If yes, prepare a second, confidential (‘Part 

II’) briefing report and indicate why it is 

not for publication by virtue of Part 1of 

Schedule 12A of the Local Government 

Act 1972 by ticking the relevant box in 

18b below.   

(Keep as much information as possible in 

the briefing report that will be in the 

public domain) 

No  

 Exemption Paragraph Number 

Page 3



 

 

 

OFFICIAL 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

18b  Confidential/exempt briefing 

report title: 

 

     
  

Background Papers 

19 Please list all unpublished, background papers relevant to the decision in the table below. 

Background papers are unpublished works, relied on to a material extent in preparing the 

report, which disclose facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the work is 

based.  If some/all of the information is confidential, you must indicate why it is not for 

publication by virtue of Part 1of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 by ticking the 

relevant box.   

 

Title of background paper(s) Exemption Paragraph Number 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

        

        

        

Cabinet Member Signature 

20 I agree the decision and confirm that it is not contrary to the Council’s policy and budget 

framework, Corporate Plan or Budget. In taking this decision I have given due regard to the 

Council’s duty to promote equality of opportunity, eliminate unlawful discrimination and 

promote good relations between people who share protected characteristics under the 

Equalities Act and those who do not. For further details please see the EIA attached. 

Signature  Date of decision 15/09/2020 

 

Print Name 

 

Councillor Chris Penberthy 

 

 

Page 4



 

Version 4 28th August 2020  OFFICIAL 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

COVID EMERGENCY FOOD AND ESSENTIAL 
SUPPLIES GRANT 

 

 

Background 

On 11 June DEFRA announced an additional £63 million to be distributed to local authorities in 

England to help those who are struggling to afford food and other essentials due to coronavirus. On 

10 July DEFRA published guidance and announced the allocations. Plymouth’s allocation of the local 

authority emergency assistance grant for food and essential supplies is £343,179.73. The DEFRA 

guidance advises that local authorities should: 

 Use discretion on how to identify and support those most in need. 

 Use the funding from July onwards to meet immediate need and help those who are struggling to 

afford food and essentials due to COVID-19. 

 Use the funding for existing schemes and other support which deliver the same outcomes and 

where the need is greatest. 

 That when deciding how to help people, local authorities should also consider advising and 

providing information to people to help them access longer term support they might need, such as 

benefits – local authorities should decide which approach is suitable in your community. 

The full guidance is here: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-local-authority-emergency-

assistance-grant-for-food-and-essential-supplies/coronavirus-covid-19-local-authority-emergency-

assistance-grant-for-food-and-essential-supplies  

During the emergency phase of COVID-19 while people were in Lockdown, the City Council and 

partners through Caring for Plymouth ensured that 909 households had access to food supplies. This 

was either because their government food parcel hadn’t arrived (if they were Shielding), or because 

they had no money for food. Initially, the Council bought and delivered food directly to people; in the 
last few weeks of lockdown, people who had no money were referred to food banks unless they 

needed food in the evenings or at weekends in which case the Council delivered food.  

During COVID, in total across all food providers 3,300 people were supported at the height of the 

programme in June 2020 providing approximately 70,000 meals.  Over £10,000 per week of food was 

purchased by local organisations (from Defra funding) in addition to support from FareShare and 

Trussel Trust. 

The continued impact of COVID-19 will mean that increasing numbers of people are expected to find 

themselves in financial difficulty and thus may have periods when they have no food. Unemployment 

and the number of benefit claimants is set to double by the end of the year – which could mean that 

there will be over 17,000 people on JobSeekers Allowance, Tax Credits or Universal Credit (including 

in-work support) by December 2020. It is estimated that one third of claimants have used food aid 

organisations during the first half of 2020, so demand could be at around 6-7,000 people requesting 

support by the end of the year.  

In addition, it is a Government expectation that Local Authorities will have a Plan for food during a 

further lockdown in an outbreak of COVID-19. The government will not be providing food parcels to 

Shielded people in a new lockdown, instead Local Authorities need to be able to support people to 

access food.  This funding is an opportunity to build resilience within the local food sector as well as 

to put in place infrastructure to enable us to respond to both a short term lockdown and to the 

longer term financial impact. 

 

Page 5

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-local-authority-emergency-assistance-grant-for-food-and-essential-supplies/coronavirus-covid-19-local-authority-emergency-assistance-grant-for-food-and-essential-supplies
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-local-authority-emergency-assistance-grant-for-food-and-essential-supplies/coronavirus-covid-19-local-authority-emergency-assistance-grant-for-food-and-essential-supplies
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-local-authority-emergency-assistance-grant-for-food-and-essential-supplies/coronavirus-covid-19-local-authority-emergency-assistance-grant-for-food-and-essential-supplies


PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

COVID EMERGENCY FOOD AND ESSENTIAL SUPPLIES GRANT Page 2 of 4 

OFFICIAL  

Target audience for the grant: 

In general to ensure that food and essential supplies are available to all those in need.  Specifically, the 

government guidance suggests the following groups but Local Authorities are able to target other 

groups that they identify as needing help in their local area: 

a. Support the newly unemployed and those seeking universal credit 

b. Support families that qualify for Free School Meals. Over the summer holiday period 

this would be limited to support for essentials that are not food due to the 

government’s COVID Summer Food Fund. 

c. Individuals with No Recourse to Public Funds (NRPF) such as immigrants where there 

are community care needs, they have serious health problems or there is a risk to a 

child’s wellbeing 

Aims of the Plymouth Scheme:   

To build the capacity of the food sector in the city to ensure that people who are struggling to afford 

food and other essentials because of the impact of COVID are able to access it.  

In the event of a future local lockdown, the sector would be able to respond and provide food to 

those who were referred by the City Council and partners as part of Caring for Plymouth. 

To provide advice and information to people to ensure they can move away from relying on short 

term food aid, for example: debt advice and benefit claims, support to access the Council’s Skills Hubs 

and employment advice and information on a range of other help and support such as the Healthy 

Start Scheme – around 45% of Plymouth families are not claiming up to £10/week in vouchers to 

spend on milk, fruit and veg.  

Recommendations: 

To use the funding from September 2020 to March 2021 as follows: 

1. Contract with Food Plymouth to co-ordinate and manage a depot on behalf of a collaborative 

alliance for the sector.  

(i) To work in partnership with FairShare, Food Plymouth and Provide Devon to facilitate 

co-ordination of all the foodbanks and other informal food aid organisations to work 

collectively to reach everyone in need. This will be particularly important if there 

should be another COVID-19 outbreak.  

(ii) The work will involve co-ordination of food donations, buying food and essentials in 

the most effective and efficient way possible, storage and distribution of food.  Working 

with the South West Food Hub CIC to optimise opportunities for local SME 

participation and using economies of scale. 

(iii) To ensure in the longer term that monitoring from all agencies is co-ordinated so that 

activity can be used to support a business case, working with Food Plymouth to 

generate a sustainable food management market in Plymouth and a sustainable income 

for food aid. 

 

2. To open a grants scheme which will have the following aims: 

(i) To increase the capacity of smaller and grassroots organisations who helped to 

distribute food to people during COVID-19 to cope with demand, in particular, 

during a further outbreak of COVID-19.  

(ii) To provide funding to organisations who are able to reach particularly vulnerable 

groups of people including: the newly unemployed and those applying for Universal 

Credit, people who are Shielding in the event of a local lockdown, the homeless, 

Page 6



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

COVID EMERGENCY FOOD AND ESSENTIAL SUPPLIES GRANT Page 3 of 4 

OFFICIAL  

frail older people, families with young children on free school meals, Refugees, 

Asylum Seekers with no recourse to public funds and the financially insecure. To 

also ensure that anchor organisations such as Wellbeing and Family Hubs can 

distribute food to local people and families who are struggling. All of this funding 

will be awarded with agreed outcomes, for example, to increase the opening hours 

of the food banks and the number of times that people can access support. 

(iii) To support organisations who are developing self-help approaches to food,  

(iv) To fund organisations who give information and advice on benefits, finances and job 

search and to support take-up of grant schemes, for example, Healthy Start for 

families with young children 

 

3. To fund Advice Plymouth to increase capacity in their debt and benefits advice both on the 

phone or by video link to people accessing food or essential supplies. There will be a dedicated 

phone line and additional staff and an active high profile ‘marketing’ campaign to ensure that 

people who need it are actively referred for financial advice and this will be linked to an 

awareness raising campaign targeted at organisations’ staff and volunteers. People will also be 

linked into the Council’s Skills Hubs and other support. 

An element of the fund will be retained by Plymouth City Council to provide food in future COVID-

19 emergency situations, for example, in the evenings or weekends when other services are closed 

and to ensure that the Council has the capacity to lead the response during another COVID 

outbreak.  

Table 1. Emergency Food Aid - Breakdown of Funding  

  

Element   Funding / £ 

Local Authority administration and infrastructure costs for co-ordinating the COVID Food Plan 
required by government  13,822.14 

Local Authority contribution to additional provision of community meals during COVID 
lockdown 33,973.52 

Local Authority purchase of food, staff and contingency budget for future emergency 
response  50,539.07 

Fair Shares Co-ordination and storage of food  85,000.00 

Grants Scheme  125,000.00 

Advice Plymouth increase capacity for benefits and debt advice, marketing campaign, links to 
Council’s Skills Hubs etc  34,845.00 

Total 343,179.73 
 

Appendix 1: Grants Scheme  

Eligibility 

Grants will only go to organisations not to individuals.  Grants will be given to constituted groups, 

Charities and social enterprises who can provide food and essential items to individuals and families in 

need either through buying, storage or distribution. 

a. Open to any organisation that can help to achieve the aims and objectives listed 

b. The organisation will need to be constituted, not for profit and have a bank account 

Page 7



PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL 

COVID EMERGENCY FOOD AND ESSENTIAL SUPPLIES GRANT Page 4 of 4 

OFFICIAL  

Delivery 

a. Web-page on POD 

b. PCC Email address for information/help 

i. FAQs 

ii. Record keeping  

c. Use PCC Firmstep for Grant Application and distribution.   

d. Authorisation panel membership to be decided – will need to include a minimum of 

Food Plymouth, the Director for Public Health, Families and Children representative, 

Economic Development Representative to provide business support. 

Further information for grant applicants: 

 Maximum amount of grant awarded will be £10k 

 The grant will be awarded in two stages e.g. October to December 2020, January to March 

2021 on receipt of initial completed 3 month data returns 

 The money to be spent within 6 months by March 2021 

 We expect applicants to demonstrate how this funding will provide additional support to 

those in need through an expanded service or an increase in numbers. The funding will not pay 

for current levels of activity 

Page 8


	Agenda
	1a Urgent Decision - Local Authority Emergency Assistance Grant for Food and Essential Supplies
	Emergency Food Grant Briefing Report


